
AGENDA 

COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES BOARD MEETING 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

July 13, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

CCMC’S core purpose is to deliver quality health care locally. 
President 

David Allison 
 term expires 03/12 

 

Vice-President 

Kristin Carpenter 
 term expires 08/12 

 

Secretary 

Sandra Cleveland Aspen, PhD, RN 
 term expires 08/12 

 

Board Members 

Elmer (E.J.) Cheshier 
 term expires 08/13 

Tim Joyce 
 term expires 08/11 

Kerin Kramer 
 term expires 08/12 

Vacant 

NVE Tribal Council Rep 
 term expires 08/13 

 

Acting CEO 

Stephen Sundby, PhD

 

I. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call – David Allison, Sandra Aspen, Kristin                                      

Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, Timothy Joyce, Kerin Kramer 

C. Establishment of a Quorum 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM 

VISITORS 

A. Guest Speaker 

B. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes per 

speaker). Speaker must give name and item on 

the agenda which they are addressing. 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

A. Approval of Minutes 

1. HSB Meeting Minutes – 6/8/2011……………..Page 1 

2. HSB Worksession Minutes – 6/14/2011.......Page 9 

3. HSB Special Meeting Minutes – 6/22/2011..Page 16 

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Administrator’s Report…………………………………………………………………………………………Page 20 

B. President’s Report 

C. Finance Report…………………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 22 

D. City Council 

E. Native Village of Eyak 

VII. ACTION ITEMS – 

A. On-call Pay for Sound Alternatives 

B. Hospital Management RFP and Recommendation to City Council 

C. 2012FY Budget 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION –   



 

A. The board shall give members of the public the opportunity to comment on matters 

which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and are appropriate for 

discussion in an open session. Public comment limited to 3 minutes per speaker. 

X. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which 

would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation 

and character of any person, provided that person my require a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, city charter, or 

ordinance are required to be confidential; 4)  Matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not 

subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of specific legal matters or 

labor negotiations.



 

- 1 - 

 

                                                                          Minutes 

                                                  Community Health Services Board 

                                                  Cordova Library Conference Room 

                                                           June 8, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

David Allison called the HSB meeting to order at 7:00pm.  Board members present: 

David Allison, Sandra Aspen, Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, and Kerin Kramer.  Absent: 

EJ Cheshier. A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO), Zhiyong Li (CFO), Kari Collins 

(DON).  

 

Others present: Mark Lynch, (Cordova City Manager). 

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS -  None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

Kramer declared a conflict of interest with Discussion Item A, Management RFP, due to 

her employer having submitted a proposal. Allison concurred but clarified that as this 

meeting served as an introduction, she could remain. Allison clarified that Kramer’s 
conflict was only related to any subsequent meetings during which the Board was likely 

to vote on a recommendation to City Council. 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Joyce, S/Carpenter: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

 Joyce recommended item VIII. A, Discussion Items, Management RFP be moved to the 

first report heard under section VI, Reports and Correspondence. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

 

 A. Approval of Minutes   



 

- 2 - 

 

 

M/Joyce, S/Aspen: Move to approve the Health Services Board minutes for 

5/11/2011. 

 

A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE   

 

A. Management RFP 

 

Lynch recapped the history of the strategic process begun one and one-half years ago. 

The process resulted in no official consensus but an agreement that Cordova needed 

something different. Lynch reported that the Native Village of Eyak was instructed to 

submit a proposal by their Council and the City submitted a Request for Information to 

18 other entities, seeking interested parties. Quorum Health and Wrangell were not part 

of the original 18 but contacted the City regarding their interest. Subsequently, the City 

sent Requests for Proposal to the remaining interested entities. Four entities responded 

to the RFP within the May 31st deadline. 

 

Lynch presented the Board with a memo that detailed the review process as approved 

by the Cordova City Council. According to the approved schedule, the Board will review 

the proposals and provide a recommendation to City Council for the July 6, 2011 

meeting. Lynch further stated that City Council has the final decision and that the Mayor 

requested that several CCMC staff members and Nichole Hunt, with Coding Concepts 

also provide input. 

 

Joyce commented that if members of City Council have not yet received the proposals 

that they should receive the info soon. Lynch responded that he will be distributing the 

proposals at the upcoming Special Meeting. 

 

Allison asked for Board members’ dates of availability for the Board’s next meeting and 
encouraged anyone in the community who wants to be involved to be so. Allison 

scheduled the work session for June 14th at 7:00 pm, and excused Kramer due to a 

conflict of interest. 

 

B. Administrator’s Report  
   



 

- 3 - 

 

Sundby reported that Wrangell Medical Center’s Director of Nursing, Sue Nelson, RN 
and Director of Information Technology, Bob Shymanski, visited CCMC on May 9 and 10. 

 

Staff are requesting information regarding the strategic process and being contacted by 

the media regarding the RFP. In response, Sundby explained the RFP process to staff 

and directed that all media inquiries be directed to the City. 

 

Sundby reported that the FY2012 is in development and noted a first draft included in 

the Financial Report. Sundby requested the Board consider a HSB Finance Committee to 

work with the executive staff on budget revisions and during audits. 

 

CCMC continues to advertise nationally and through the State for a clinical social 

worker. Mavon Lee, LCSW, is contracted to provide quarterly consultations to keep 

CCMC’s Long Term Care in compliance. Sound Alternatives is also advertising for a full-

time clinical. Sundby introduced Dr. Ann Nora Ehret, and also announced that two new 

Physician Assistant graduates have shown interest in CCMC. 

 

Sundby reported that the CEO and CFO continue to meet with Angela Arnold and 

Penney Benson of NVE to coordinate and collaborate. He further reported that the lease 

with Ilanka Community Health Center is due for renewal. Li added that he and Ken Lobe 

(CCMC Maintenance) are researching all of the variables associated with the cost of the 

lease. 

 

Carpenter noted that CCMC had a Finance Committee once, but it disbanded, as it was 

the Board’s belief that all board members needed to be involved in the financial details. 

Sundby responded that administration may need the Board to meet more than once a 

month for budget issues. 

 

Kramer asked if CCMC had tried “3R net” for recruitment. Collins responded in the 

affirmative. Carpenter requested clarification on the privileging action items on the 

agenda to which Sundby responded that it is for locums. Carpenter questioned whether 

the Physician Assistants interested in CCMC would be hired for full time. Sundby 

responded that the prospects are wanting partial time. Sundby commented on the loan 

repayment opportunities CCMC is pursuing and reported that will assist the organization 

in recruiting providers.  Carpenter asked if the two are contributing to more stable 

coverage, to which Sundby replied that CCMC has lowered the rates. Carpenter 

commented that it would likely help with patient satisfaction. Joyce noted that it would 

be good to staff to the levels CCMC needs to ensure consistent clinic operating hours. 



 

- 4 - 

 

 

Allison confirmed that CCMC staff should refer calls from the media regarding the RFP 

process to the City. Allison further stated that the City Council will be responsible for 

the decision unless a vote of the people is required. Allison asked that the memo 

provided by Lynch be distributed to CCMC staff to help answer questions. 

  

B. President’s Report   
 

No report. 

 

C. Finance Report  

 

Li reported that in the May report, the AR balances will be substantially lower and closer 

to the real financial picture. CCMC is using an outside agency to manage the self-pay 

accounts. Cindy has been working on the outstanding ones. The result is not that CCMC 

has additional cash, but it results in a better (more accurate) financial picture. Carpenter 

noted that it is closer to 1.1, which is the best its been in over a year. Li responded that 

CCMC used to use Cornerstone, which had a 12% recovery rate; the new agency claims a 

higher recovery rate.  

 

Li noted that for CCMC’s past payroll, cash was tight, but the City quickly cut a check to 
CCMC to assist. Carpenter reiterated that May’s financials will look different. 
 

Li advised the Board that the financial report will follow the same format every month, 

providing the Board with enough information but not too much. 

 

Li reviewed the April Balance Sheet, highlighting cash balance, total assets, and the total 

current liabilities. Referencing the Income Statement, Li noted that Gross Patient 

Services Revenue increased in April, over March, and explained the increase was 

primarily due to the Health Fair. Li also noted the Net Income/(Loss) line as the bottom 

line and qualifies that the YTD totals reflected 10 months of the annual cycle. 

 

Li noted that Gross Patient Services Revenue was slightly higher than last year and 

explained the Contractual Adjustment discrepancies as related to the $500K bad debt 

that was adjusted and noted in prior meetings. Li highlighted that Professional Services 

is the third highest Expense Category for CCMC, behind wages and associated taxes and 

fees. Carpenter requested clarification on the different between the Net Patient Service 



 

- 5 - 

 

Revenue Vs. Expenses graph and the Total Revenue Vs. Expenses graph. Li responded 

that the latter included the City’s contribution and grants received by CCMC. 
 

Li presented a proposed FY12 Operating Budget and explained his assumptions for three 

different scenarios. The first reflects an increase in revenue of 10% based on 

expectations for the Charge Master update. The scenario assumes that patient volume 

remains the same at the City continues to contribute $400K to operations. Li further 

stated that if CCMC is able to stabilize providers, it will help the budget numbers and 

may increase patient volume as well. Li highlighted the 5% increase in Other Expenses 

and noted that switching to Blue Cross means and increase in insurance costs of $80K. 

Sundby qualified that the increase was not due solely to the switch, and that the cost 

would have risen with Aetna, as well.  Li cautioned that the actual FY09 Net Gain/Loss 

was so high because the City waived a $500K loan to CCMC. Without the waiver, FY09 

through FY11 reflect comparable net losses. Li noted that there was no increase to 

wages. Carpenter requested that before the budget goes to Council, Li add a statement 

that raises will be awarded retroactively as the budget allows.  

 

Li presented the second scenario, noting that this case assumes a 5% increase in volume 

due to stable providers replacing two FTE locums. Li also spoke to the difference 

between FTE employees and locums, noting that the former cost CCMC $70-76K less. Li 

further noted that in contrast, regarding nurses, agency hires and independents both 

cost less than those employed by CCMC due to PERS. CCMC’s goal should be to focus on 
the independent travelling nurses for the greatest cost savings.  

 

Li presented scenario three, which was based on two additional Long Term Care 

residents. Each LTC resident brings in roughly $300K and two addition will not require 

any changes in staffing, only an increase in supplies and pharmacy expenses. Sundby 

further commented that CCMC’s goal should be to fill as many beds as we can. 

 

Li concluded by noting that the next steps for the budget are the Department-level 

breakdowns and holding each cost center responsible for the associated budget piece. 

 

Carpenter confirmed that all three scenarios reflect the anticipated revenue increase 

related to Charge Master. Carpenter asked the Board when the budget would be going 

to City Council. Allison responded that the Board is not going to approve a budget 

recommendation tonight. Li offered that that scenario three, increase LTC residence is 

the simpler option, and noted that the clinic could be open more with a stable provider. 

Li also noted grants as potential funding. Li further commented that Ilanka’s rent is 



 

- 6 - 

 

currently $6,600 per month and the total utility expense alone for one-eighth of the 

facility totaled $4-5K per month. Carpenter asked how realistic is was for CCMC to fill 

two additional Long Term beds. Sundby responded that CCMC needs to develop 

relationships with referring entities so CCMC has a “source”. Carpenter stated that if it is 

a realistic expectation with marketing, that CCMC should pursue that direction. Li stated 

that administration will also be looking at management and other efficiencies. 

 

Joyce commented that the Income Statement reflects a jump for general malpractice 

insurance. Li responded that it is likely a quarterly payment and he will follow up. 

 

Carpenter asked if depreciation is funded. Li responded that it is not funded; it is an 

accounting rule that it must be counted as an expense. Allison added that in the early 

90’s, the Board used the depreciation as capital budget.  
 

Carpenter asked if the budget could be added to the next Board meeting agenda. 

Allison countered that the Board give Li more time. Li responded that he will factor in a 

projected increase of 13.7%, as presented by Blue Cross as the expected increase in 

revenue following the Charge Master update. Li also mentioned the loan payment of 

$40K due to the City. Allison responded that the City considers the loan part of a $500K 

line of credit. Allison directed that CCMC make the $40K payment, and if more funds are 

needed in the future, the Board can request funds from the line of credit. Li noted that 

the 2009 and 2010 budgets included $150K pledged from the City to match CCMC’s 
contribution and asked if the commitment from the City still stands. Joyce asked if the 

funds were attributed for the purchase of a particular piece of equipment. Li responded 

no, it was designated for capital, large-scale project. Li further qualified that new 

equipment would increase depreciation and increase reimbursement rate. 

  

D. City Council   

 

Allison reported that there was nothing new but that the City should be receiving a 

couple million for a new roof for CCMC based on the State budget awaiting approval. 

 

E. Native Village of Eyak  

 

No report. 

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS   

 



 

- 7 - 

 

 A. Privileging of Karen Morrissette, MD 

 

M/Carpenter, S/Joyce: Move to grant practicing privileges at CCMC to Dr. Karen 

Morrissette.  

 

Joyce noted that the privileging paperwork indicates that Dr. Morrissette does not want 

to cover the emergency room and requested clarification. Sundby responded that 

Morrissette is an Ilanka provider and Ilanka receives the professional fee revenue and 

CCMC receives the facility-related revenue. Carpenter clarified that the purpose of 

privileging is to allow Morrissette to admit patients to CCMC. Allison affirmed that 

Kramer can vote on the privileging.   

 

A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

B. Privileging of Lorren Weaver, MD   

 

M/Carpenter, S/Joyce: Move to grant practicing privileges at CCMC to Dr. Lorren 

Weaver. 

 

Sundby noted that Weaver has been granted privileges for two weeks and needs full 

privileges. Carpenter asked if Weaver was a locum and Sundby responded that Weaver 

is a locum that CCMC uses consistently. 

 

A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas – 0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS   

 

 A. Quality Improvement Plan 

 

Sundby commented that the Plan was for the Board’s information and discussion. The 
Plan forms the baseline for Policy & Procedure development and outcome measures. 

Allison requested that Board members read it prior to the next meeting and provide any 

comments at that time. 

 

 B. Election of Officers 

 

Allison asked Board members if they wanted to elect Board officers now. Joyce 

recommended that the Board maintain the current slate of officers until the City makes 



 

- 8 - 

 

a decision regarding the RFP. Carpenter suggested that the item be postponed to a 

date-certain time and suggested the September regular Board meeting. Allison directed 

staff to reschedule the election of officers for the September regular meeting. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION   

 

None. 

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

  

Kramer commented that everyone was going a good job. Aspen thanked Laura for 

providing consistent Minutes. Joyce commented that he liked the QI program and 

requested that staff report back in a month or two with some related outcomes and 

accomplishments. Joyce further commented that while Outside he had numerous 

conversations with staff at other hospitals and believes CCMC to be in good shape. 

Carpenter noted her new appreciation for nurses following a medical situation in her 

family. Carpenter thanked Li, commenting that the financials are being presented really 

well. 

 

Allison relayed his experiences in the Swedish system, where he was seen by numerous 

providers and the discrepancies between the charges amount and the settled amount. 

Allison further stated that regarding the RFP, not accepting one of the four options is 

still a possible option. 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

 

 None.  

  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

M/Joyce, S/Carpenter: Move to adjourn.  Unanimously approved.  Meeting adjourned 

at 8:27 pm. 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 

 

 Reviewed by:   Sandra Aspen, HSB Secretary 



 

- 9 - 

 

Minutes 

Community Health Services Board 

Worksession 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

June 14, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

David Allison called the HSB meeting to order at 7:05pm. Board members present: 

David Allison, Sandra Aspen, Kristin Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, and Tim Joyce.  Absent: 

Kerin Kramer (excused for Conflict of Interest). A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO), Zhiyong Li (CFO), Kari Collins 

(DON), Vivian Knop.  

 

Others present: Mark Lynch (City Manager) 

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS -  None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST -  No additional. 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Cheshier, S/Joyce: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR -  No items. 

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE -  No reports.  

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS -  No items.  

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS   

 

 A. Management RFP Responses 

 



 

- 10 - 

 

Allison queried Carpenter on how to best start, as she had worked most closely with the 

City Manager on the process. Carpenter suggested that the Board decide which areas 

the Board wants included in the list of questions for the City Council to ask the 

proposers and decide whether the Board would need to meet again before the meeting 

with City Council. Allison stated that the proposals left many questions, and that he did 

not feel prepared to make a decision without some questions being answered. Sundby 

requested that the Board assure invited staff members that nothing said would be held 

against them should a proposal be selected despite their expressed concerns. Allison 

assured invited staff that sensitive concerns could be brought directly to a Board 

member in private, and the Board member would express the concern in open forum. 

He further affirmed that any concern staff has should be a concern of the Board. Allison 

further stated that he would like as much of this process as possibly to be done publicly. 

Aspen added that the minutes do not need to refer to staff members by name; only 

Board member comments are directly attributable. 

 

Allison stated that he looked at each proposal to see if first, would a charter change be 

required, particularly with respect to all health services being under the separate 

administrative control appointed by Council and second, the financial concerns 

regarding each proposal.   

 

Carpenter and Joyce discussed (City) subsidies and which entity (City or contracted 

manager) would make up any deficit related to each proposal. Allison provided his 

perspective on how the City would address any operational budget request for CCMC. 

Allison further clarified that City Council definitely needs to cover budget issues with the 

proposers, particularly with respect to how any deficit would be handled. Those present 

discussed profit-sharing models in general with no resultant questions. 

 

Carpenter pointed out that neither Wrangell nor NVE responded to question number 18 

with budget figures, which is non-responsive to the RFP. The Board discussed in general 

operational and administrative costs beyond the base management fee, to include 

administrative salaries, add-on services, and the cost to contract needed services. 

Allison asked if the lack of budget figures were to be follow-up issues for the proposers. 

Discussion of NVE’s proposal included the operational nature of the response, rather 
than a management framework, as well as the fact that NVE’s proposal would result in a 
dual management system. The Board further agreed that the lack of budget figures in 

the NVE proposal was tied to the fact that NVE would not charge the City a management 

fee. The Board noted all of the add-on fees related to the Providence submission. 

Following discussion, Allison queried the Board as to their intent and whether to 



 

- 11 - 

 

consider the Wrangell proposal as non-responsive. The Board members concurred that 

the lack of specific costs to Cordova in the Wrangell proposal should be more an 

indicator of a proposal’s non-responsiveness. 

 

The Board discussed the complexities of sharing a CEO between two similar facilities. 

Allison provided some related concerns held by Wrangell’s Board as reported in open 

sources. Li requested clarification from Collins regarding the relationship between 

CCMC and Wrangell competing for Long Term Care beds. Joyce commented that all of 

the proposers were in fact competitors, to which Li clarified that the concern is related 

to a single CEO shared between competing facilities. 

 

Carpenter commented that Cordova needs a management team that can deliver a 

successful structure and that the Wrangell proposal lacked certainty in many areas. 

Aspen concurred, stating that Wrangell’s proposal included many nebulous statements, 
for example, that “were open to several management models”, but did not specify 
which they felt would work. She stated that Providence set the bar high with specifics 

and that Wrangell’s proposal did not offer the same detail. Aspen further questioned 

what Wrangell would bring that we don’t already have access to. 
 

Carpenter stated the Wrangell’s reliance on grants is an issue and that the Board needs 
to focus on a more sustainable funding model and improved financials. Staff asked 

rhetorically which facility (Wrangell or Cordova) would be the recipient of grant funding 

first with a shared CEO. 

 

Joyce summarized that regarding Wrangell, there was insufficient information provided 

for the Board to give the proposal due consideration. He highlighted the lack of a 

response to question #18, concerns regarding the shared CEO’s priorities and the 
sustainability of a grant model. The Board concurred that these were comments to City 

Council and justification for not considering Wrangell. 

 

Regarding NVE, Joyce addressed his concerns about how the Board would make Long 

Term Care and the cafeteria would function without any additional support services. He 

noted in particular LTC licensure and utility management. Staff endorsed the idea of 

structurally separating the functions so that LTC residents are not living in a hospital, but 

noted that NVE’s proposal doesn’t change the physical structure. Staff and Joyce further 

highlighted the need for contracts to share nurses and providers between the resultant 

separate operations. In addition, staff also commented on the fact that Long Term Care 

(LTC) currently shares equipment and supplies with the hospital and hospital clinic; 



 

- 12 - 

 

should NVE take on the hospital, LTC would have the additional costs of replacing access 

to equipment and supplies. Joyce concurred, stating that as a result, the costs and 

complications associated with NVE’s proposed model are higher than CCMC has now. 
Allison added that it would also likely cause LTC revenues to decline; the revenue side 

requires significant financial analysis to determine the potential impact.  

 

Sundby asked if NVE’s proposal accomplish what the community wanted, (as 
determined through the Strategic Process,) which is unity and clarity in Cordova’s 
medical care. Aspen noted that the proposal allows NVE to hire, fire, and discipline 

employees, and wondered given the protracted and divisive nature of the Strategic 

Process, would current employees be fearful of their jobs and would this increase 

divisiveness in the community. Aspen noted that clarity is missing from the NVE 

proposal and the Board will have to answer to the community if it does not meet what 

they wanted. The Board concurred that the NVE proposal did not accomplish the 

community’s desires.  
 

Carpenter further noted that the purpose of the strategic process was to find a qualified 

manager for our facility and pointed out that NVE stated within their proposal that they 

have no experience with a Critical Access Hospital. Since the experience is exactly what 

we need, she did not believe that NVE can do what CCMC needs them to. Carpenter 

offered that the NVE proposal was non-responsive or would score very low as a result. 

The Board concurred.  

 

Carpenter opened the discussion on Providence and Quorum with consideration of their 

fee structure, noting that Quorum’s was more comprehensive. Attendees discussed 
costs associated with Electronic Medical Records and CCMC’s options. Joyce stated that 

Providence did address IT equipment in their proposal and the need for compatible 

systems. Cheshier clarified that Providence’s proposal states that CCMC’s has to 
purchase everything so “it can stay here”.  
 

Carpenter noted that Providence’s proposal doesn’t mention outpatient surgeries and 

questioned whether Providence has an incentive to grow CCMC’s capacity in Cordova. 
Joyce offered that Cordova could ask the question of other small Providence facilities 

such as Seward or Valdez. Sundby offered that Providence would increase our services 

by feeding patients to their services as well as using technology to keep people here, 

such as Electronic ICU, which would allow Anchorage-based providers to monitor and 

follow-up wth their patients in Cordova. In those instances, CCMC would derive the 

facility-based patient revenue, while Providence would obtain the provider-based 



 

- 13 - 

 

patient revenue. Carpenter suggested that City Council query both Providence and 

Quorum regarding their strategy for increasing local capacity.  

 

Staff noted that Quorum’s proposal seems to allow CCMC to retain its identity while 

ensuring our success. Cheshier added that Quorum is not competition, and that he fears 

other proposers may want to take too much out of Cordova. He added that CCMC is 

seeking good management, and a team with resources, not a new identity. The Board 

discussed speaking with references, both at the staff level and at the Board level to 

determine the reality of working with either entity. Sitka was brought up as a similar 

example that recently converted to Quorum’s management. Lynch clarified discussions 

with Providence’s clients as part of the strategic process and that he followed up with 
Quorum’s clients as part of the RFP process. Sundby provided information on Bartlett 

regional and affirmed that the relationship between Quorum and the local Board was 

seamless. Staff offered that Quorum appeared to be an entity that is would be a 

pleasure to work with and that they have resources on every area that CCMC would 

need to improve our processes and capabilities. Sundby relayed that at Bartlett, they 

were not “nickel-and-dimed” for this expertise. Joyce noted that Quorum’s fee structure 
was clear, but that City Council would need to obtain information regarding salary 

ranges associated with the proposers’ Administrators. 
 

Carpenter reiterated the need to speak with references. Lynch asked if the Board 

wanted him to set up a teleconference for them to talk to other individuals. Joyce 

responded that his intention was not that the Board do so, but that either the City or 

CCMC staff do so. Lynch offered that the CEO would be a more appropriate person to 

contact Sitka.  

The Board discussed the Administrator position and which entity has control over 

choosing the CEO, the process, as well as inconsistencies between the Board charter and 

city code. Allison confirmed the role of the Board with separate administrative control 

of all the health services in Cordova and that the Code is in violation of the people’s 
vote. Lynch clarified that HSB currently has the authority to hire/fire the CEO. Sundby 

relayed his experience with Bartlett. 

 

Cheshier highlighted that a big difference between the Quorum and Providence 

responses is the Board: both structure and responsibilities. He offered that the Board 

needs to consider what kind of Board CCMC/the community wants and what kind of 

responsibility the Board wants. He added that for Quorum, CCMC needs a good, strong, 

Board and that Cordova would have to decide if it wanted an elected or appointed 

Board. 



 

- 14 - 

 

 

The Board confirmed that Allison will bring to Council the question of administrator 

salary ranges for both Providence and Quorum. The Board relayed that City Council 

should also obtain information from Providence regarding their intended length of 

contract in order to assess both proposals equitably. Joyce questioned whether 

Quorum’s fee of $373K per year was over five years or whether the rate would change 
over the term. 

 

Allison opened a discussion on Providence’s numerous add-ons. Following discussion, 

Carpenter suggested that City Council request from Providence an average ratio of add-

on features compared to the base management fee for each of the smaller Alaska 

facilities. The Board discussed PERS with respect to CCMC employees and the proposals. 

Lynch confirmed that CCMC employees will remain in PERS because the City cannot 

afford a transition.  

 

Relative to the add-on fees, Carpenter requested that staff develop representative 

scenarios related to comprehensive and add-on services that City Council could present 

to Providence and Quorum’s management for a general response. Lynch offered that 

the City should consider obtaining a detailed fee schedule for the add-on fees.  

 

The Board affirmed a general consensus that they found Quorum most favorable. Aspen 

and Cheshier both stated a desire to maintain a facility that reflects the Cordova 

community and is inclusive with respect to the population’s diversity. Allison requested 

the questions from staff and the minutes from this worksession be provided prior to 

June 24. Lynch reported that he hoped to provide the proposals to City Council this 

week. Carpenter stated that the Board would follow up following the July 6 joint 

meeting with City Council. Allison stated that the subsequent HSB regular meeting, on 

July 13, would be a good time to do that.  

 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION -  None 

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

  

Carpenter thanked the City Manager for organizing the process and thanked staff for 

their participation. Thanks were echoed by Cheshier, Joyce, and Aspen. 

 

Allison invited comments from CCMC staff, who relayed their appreciation for the 

opportunity to give their opinion and perspective. They further relayed that is was nice 



 

- 15 - 

 

to be involved at a planning level. Allison thanked staff for the extra work they’ve put in. 
He further affirmed that the Board takes staff’s input seriously.  
 

Joyce commented that he believed the Board narrowed the options to two. He further 

stated that either would work, but it was a matter of how we go about it. 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

 

 None.  

  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

M/Joyce, S/Aspen: Move to adjourn.  Unanimously approved.  Meeting adjourned at 

8:47 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 

 

 Reviewed by:   Sandra Aspen, HSB Secretary 

  



 

- 16 - 

 

Minutes 

Community Health Services Board 

SPECIAL MEETING 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

June 22, 2011 – 12:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

David Allison called the HSB meeting to order at 12:00pm. Board members present: 

David Allison, Sandra Aspen, Kristin Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, and Tim Joyce.  Absent: 

Kerin Kramer. A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO).  

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS -  None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST -  None 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Joyce, S/Aspen: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

M/Carpenter: Add item B to Action Items to make a recommendation to City Council of 

choice of proposal. 

 

No second. Carpenter withdrew Motion. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR -  No items. 

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE -  No reports.  

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS  

 

 A. Role of the Cordova Community In Local Health Services 

 



 

- 17 - 

 

M/Carpenter, S/Joyce: Move that the Health Services Board recommend the City of 

Cordova consider negotiating a contract with Quorum Health for hospital management. 

 

Carpenter noted that Quorum and Providence differ in how they interact with the 

Board; under Quorum, the Board maintains the current form, under Providence, the 

Board exists in a difference form. Carpenter further stated that she would like to see 

Cordova continue with a governing board mode. She wants to increase local capacity 

and believes that Quorum best allows for that. Carpenter additionally stated that if the 

City chooses the other option, it is her impression that the emphasis will be on Cordova 

feeding Anchorage and there will be little interest in helping CCMC grow locally.   

 

Cheshier stated that there will be little interest from the community in serving on a 

Board that doesn’t do anything. 
 

Carpenter acknowledged that the Board will have to work on recruitment and 

development to ensure a good governing Board. Joyce agreed and noted that from a 

strategic perspective, it will take changes in Cordova’s ordinances to ensure the Board 
can exercise the control it needs to. Joyce offered the School Board as an example of a 

separate board that functions in Cordova. He further suggested that if Quorum were 

chosen, he believes the resulting HSB should be an elected 7-person board with full 

power; if Providence is selected, the HSB should be reduced to 5 people. 

 

Allison reference the City Charter and explained that the provision for the Health 

Services Board would not apply with Providence, as CCMC would not be City-operated 

under that proposal. As is, the Charter would impact Quorum and would require a code 

change by the City. Allison continued by noting that there are both good and bad points 

to having a governing Board and specifically referenced an elected Board with separate 

powers and the ability to have CCMC run independent of the City. Allison noted that it is 

difficult for non-industry professionals to weight in appropriately and the question of 

how much involvement City Council wants in CCMC’s operation remains. Ultimately, it 
should be up to what the voters want. 

 

Joyce commented the Board is seeking additional information from the proposing 

entities and that it is appropriate for the Board to get those answers for Council; the 

process can’t move forward without the answers. Joyce also noted that he is leaning 

towards the Quorum model and stated his concern that there might be conflicts with 

Providence.  

 



 

- 18 - 

 

Aspen agreed that she wants the answers to the Board’s questions and staff’s questions 
before moving forward. Aspen noted that if the new model doesn’t work, with Quorum 

the Board still has its hands in it. Aspen also stated her idea that losing control will result 

in a loss of interest in the community for CCMC. Carpenter responded that CCMC is a 

critical resource for the community and noted that the Coast Guard, school 

Superintendent, and retirees look for the availability of health services when evaluating 

communities. To the extent Cordova has it as a resource, local control is critical. 

 

Aspen highlighted that Quorum is only interested in managing CCMC, an important 

distinction. 

 

Cheshier voiced his concerns about an elected board, including the potential for an 

election to turn into a popularity contest. He further noted that oversight of CCMC is too 

much to ask of City Council and that it is critical that the Board include the right people 

to be effective. Cheshier stated that the Board will need to establish a nominating 

committee, educate the voters, and ensure a solid Board. Carpenter responded that 

traditionally, that is part of a Board’s job. Joyce added that he believes there are people 

in the community that would really want to make CCMC work, particularly under good 

management. Carpenter noted that we are getting on the right track and success breeds 

success. Cheshier added that there are Council members that want to “give it to 
someone to run” and remove CCMC from the local politics. Joyce concurred with the 

need to remove CCMC from the local politics. 

 

Cheshier noted that by choosing Quorum, Cordova would be implementing stability 

with a 5-year contract and a set price. 

 

M/Joyce, S/Cheshier: Move to postpone making a recommendation to City Council until 

answers to the questions are in and after the joint worksession with City Council. 

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS – No items. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION -  None 

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

  

Allison requested that staff pass on the Board’s questions to the City Manager to be 
answered by the July 6, 2011 joint worksession. Allison further directed Sundby to 

coordinate with the City Manager to determine who would conduct the follow-up. 



 

- 19 - 

 

 

Cheshier noted his investment in the process and voiced his concern for making the 

wrong decision. Carpenter thanked everyone and stated that she thinks that the process 

causes individuals to consider the ramifications of their decisions and notes that is a 

good thing.  

 

Aspen commented that both option reflect the task force’s recommendation and that 
she sees only positive steps forward. 

 

Allison make note of Nichole Hunt’s analysis, distributed via email and commented that 
her conclusions reflected the Board’s conclusions. He further noted that change is good, 
especially when an entity is struggling.   

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

 

 None.  

  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

M/Cheshier, S/Joyce: Move to adjourn.  Unanimously approved.  Meeting adjourned at 

12:45 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 

 

 Reviewed by:   Sandra Aspen, HSB Secretary 

  



 

- 20 - 

 

 



 

- 21 - 

 

 



 

- 22 - 

 

 

  



 

- 23 - 

 

 

  



 

- 24 - 

 

 

Page 1 of 2 



 

- 25 - 

 

 
Page 2 of 2 



 

- 26 - 

 



 

- 27 - 

 

 
  



 

- 28 - 

 



 

- 29 - 

 

 



 

- 30 - 

 

 


